Public Document Pack <u>CABINET</u> 18/11/2024 at 6.00 pm



Present: Councillor Shah (Chair) Councillors M Ali, Brownridge, Dean, F Hussain, Jabbar and Taylor

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Goodwin and Mushtaq.

2 URGENT BUSINESS

There were no items of urgent business received.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest received.

4 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

There were no public questions for this meeting of the Cabinet to consider.

5 MINUTES

Resolved:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 14th October 2024, be approved as a correct record.

6 SHAREHOLDER COMMITTEE - MINUTES

Resolved:

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Shareholder Committee, held 3rd October 2024, be noted.

7 REVENUE MONITOR AND CAPITAL INVESTMENT PROGRAMME 2024/25

The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Finance that provided Members with an update, as of 30th September 2024 (Month 6), of the Council's 2024/25 forecast revenue budget position (detailed at Annex 1) and the financial position of the capital programme together with the revised capital programme 2024/25 to 2028/29 (detailed at Annex 2).

The Cabinet were advised that the forecast overspend position based on the Month 6 profiled budget was £9.956m, which if not addressed, would result in a year-end overspend of £19.912m (£21.065m at Month 4).

This financial monitoring report follows on from the position reported at Month 4 and should continue to be used as a warning of the potential year- end position if no further action is taken to reduce net expenditure. The management actions already implemented for 2024/25 have been factored into the Month 6 forecasts and this has resulted in a reduction in the position previously reported.

Work was ongoing across the organisation to address this position and it was anticipated that by the year end, the current

outturn deficit position should reduce even further. An update on the Month 6 2024/25 position was detailed within Annex 1.



In terms of the Capital Position, the report outlined the most up to date capital spending position for 2024/25 to 2028/29 for approved schemes. The revised capital programme budget for 2024/25 is £99.505m at the close of Quarter 2 (£103.935m at Month 4), a net reduction of £4.430m. the actual expenditure to 30^{th} September 2024 was £31.222m (31.38% of the forecast outturn).

Resolved that the Cabinet:

- 1. Notes the report.
- 2. Approves the forecast profiled budget, being an adverse position of £9.956m at Quarter 2 and the forecast potential adverse position by year end of £19.912m, with mitigations in place to reduce expenditure.
- 3. Approves the revised reserves policy for 2024/25, as detailed at Appendix 2 of Annex 1.
- 4. Approves the revised capital programme for 2024/25 including the proposed virements and the forecast for the financial years to 2028/29 as at Quarter 2, as outlined in Annex 2.

8 OLDHAM TOWN CENTRE DEVELOPMENT FRAMEWORK

The Cabinet considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive (Place) which asked Members to consider endorsing the amended Oldham Town Centre Development Framework, following a public engagement exercise.

The Cabinet was informed that as part of the Council's Creating a Better Place programme to transform Oldham Town Centre, including the delivery of 2,000 new homes, Cabinet had approved the appointment of Muse Place Ltd as our long-term Strategic Delivery Partner in June 2023, following an extensive OJEU compliant competitive procurement exercise.

Since that time, a Master Development Agreement (MDA) between the Council and Muse was entered into in September 2023 and a Detailed Business Plan for the partnership was approved by the Council in March 2024.

A key element of the Detailed Business Plan covered how the core Town Centre housing sites, including the Civic Centre, Former Leisure Centre and Former Magistrates Court will be taken forward. The first stage of this was the production of a draft Town Centre Development Framework, which would help to guide future planning and development proposals in the Town Centre.

A draft Town Centre Development Framework was consulted upon from 24th July until 11th September 2024 (seven weeks in total). The draft Development Framework itself and the full range of consultation material was available to be viewed on the Council's website at: <u>https://oldhamtownliving.co.uk</u>. The Town Centre Development Framework document had been refined, taking onboard the feedback received through the consultation, and this report was seeking the endorsement of that final Development Framework by the Cabinet.



Options/Alternatives considered:

- a. Option 1 to endorse the finalised Oldham Town Centre Development Framework.
- b. Option 2 to not endorse the finalised Oldham Town Centre Development Framework

The Development Framework provided a clear overview of what the council and partners have been doing, and continue to do, in and around the town centre, and how the proposed developments in the Oldham Town Living partnership with Muse will fit in this context and enhance the town centre. Having gone through a public consultation, in which there was significant engagement, and taken onboard the feedback from this engagement, the finalised Development Framework is now suitable for endorsement and use by the council and partners going forward. Therefore, option 1 is recommended, and there are no disadvantages to this option.

Not endorsing the Development Framework would bring no advantages, as it leaves the Development Framework with no true status and proposals for the Town Centre with no overarching framework to work to (or for the council to hold partners to). As such, option 2 is not recommended.

Option 1 is therefore the preferred option.

Resolved:

That the Cabinet endorses the Oldham Town Centre Development Framework.

INCLUSION OF OLDHAM MUMPS, PRINCES GATE INTO THE TOWN CENTRE DEVELOPMENT PARTNERSHIP

The Cabinet considered a report of the deputy Chief Executive (Place) which sought approval to include Oldham Mumps, Princes Gate into the Town Centre Development Partnership with MUSE to deliver new homes.

The submitted report set out the rationale for the Council to include the Princes Gate site into the Master Development Agreement, that has been completed with the Private Sector Partner - MUSE. The inclusion of the Princes Gate site will deliver around 295 new homes to push forward with the delivery of the town centre regeneration masterplan supported by Brownfield Housing Land Grant secured on the site to help delivery.

Options/Alternatives Considered: The options were detailed in the confidential report.

Resolved:

9

That the Cabinet will consider the confidential recommendations in the report at agenda item 14.

10 RIGHT START AND SCHOOL NURSING STAFF CONSULTATION OUTCOME



The Cabinet considered a joint report of the Director of Public Health and the Director of Education, Skills and Early Years which advised members that approval had been granted, by the Cabinet, in June 2024, to enter into a period of formal workforce engagement and consultation regarding the Right Start and School Nursing Service, which is currently delivered under a Section 75 Partnership Agreement between Oldham Council and Northern Care Alliance (NCA). The submitted report to this meeting sought approval to commence implementation of the service redesign of the Right Start and School Nursing service to create a new Integrated Children and Families Service.

Staff consultation on these proposals had taken place between 7th August 2024 and 21st September 2024. Several changes to the proposal were made as a result. The report therefore provided further details of the engagement and consultation which had taken place.

This report explains how the council will introduce a new operating model for the Integrated Children and Families Service. The new model replaces the current Right Start and School Nursing Service.

Options/Alternatives Considered: The options were detailed in the confidential report.

Resolved:

That the Cabinet will consider the confidential recommendations in the report at agenda item 15.

11 CATERING REVIEW IMPLEMENTATION

The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Economy which informed the Cabinet of the current financial and operating position of Oldham Education Catering Service (OECS) who provided catering for 46 schools in Oldham. There were several issues of concern for the delivery of the service including increasing costs of quality local food supplies, increasing costs for staff and a continued decline in the number of schools contracting with the Council. With the continued roll out of academisation, it was anticipated that the number of schools contracting with the Council will continue to reduce over the coming years.

In response to the challenges faced by OECS, the Association for Public Service Excellence, (APSE), were commissioned to undertake an evidence based independent review. The report highlighted several options which the Cabinet were requested to consider.

OECS was the in-house school catering function that provides school meals: this is not a statutory function of the Council and

schools have been opting to use various alternative services for several years now.

OECS provides approximately 7,700 meals per day and employs 199 catering staff. There are 87 Primary School in the Oldham Borough, however OECS only provides catering services for 46 of those: the remaining schools which are not supported by OECS use established providers within the school meals market or operate a successful in-house catering service. It is anticipated that the number of schools contracting with the Council will reduce in the coming years due to private companies offering schools a competitively priced service, and because of new business decisions as schools were 'academised'.

The independent APSE review had identified a number of service areas which required substantial investment whilst recognising this could take a considerable period of time to complete. However, even with this investment, the report cautioned that whilst this provides an opportunity for the service to balance costs versus budget, this would not be guaranteed. The report therefore concluded that the current delivery model was not sustainable and that transitioning the service back to schools would provide a number of benefits including local decision making for schools, (for example menu choices), and increased integration of the catering function with other school services, whilst protecting local jobs and allowing a continuity of service within schools.

Options/Alternatives Considered: The options were detailed in the confidential report.

Resolved:

That the Cabinet will consider the confidential recommendations in the report at agenda item 16.

12 PUBLIC HEALTH INVESTMENT REVIEW

The Cabinet considered a report of the Director of Public Health which provided members with an update on the Public Health Investment Review and present the resulting proposals for consideration.

The report supplied an update on the Public Health Investment Review and associated proposals for in-year and future changes to investment in council services from the Public Health budget. This included those services where public health investment was used by other council areas to commission external providers.

Options/Alternatives Considered: The options were detailed in the confidential report.

Resolved:

That the Cabinet will consider the confidential recommendations in the report at agenda item 17.



13 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC

Resolved:

That in accordance with Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be excluded from the meeting, for the following four items of business, on the grounds that they contain exempt information, as defined under paragraph 3 Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, and it would not, on balance, be in the public interest to disclose the reports.



The Cabinet considered confidential recommendations to the report detailed at agenda item 9.

Resolved:

14

- That the Cabinet Members approve the inclusion of the Oldham Mumps into the Master Development Agreement (dated 11th September 2023) via a Supplementary Agreement to ensure MUSE's obligations and timescales for stratifying the core sites are maintained.
- 2. That the Cabinet agrees to delegate authority to the Leader, Deputy Chief Executive (Place) and to the Interim Borough Solicitor to agree the final details and then finalise the supplemental agreement with Muse.
- That the Cabinet agree to delegate authority to the Leader, Deputy Chief Executive (Place) and Director of Finance to review all legal, financial and commercial details, ahead of entering into relevant agreements to support predevelopment partnership costs (up to £5 Million).

15 RIGHT START AND SCHOOL NURSING STAFF CONSULTATION OUTCOME

The Cabinet considered confidential recommendations to the report detailed at agenda item 10.

Resolved:

- That the Cabinet approves the new operating model, <u>Option 1</u> shown at Appendix 1 to the confidential report, which has been refined following detailed discussions with staff, formal consultation with unions and scrutiny by the 0-19 Governance Operational Group and the Children and Families Early Help Board
- That the Cabinet authorises officers to take the necessary actions to implement the restructure effective from 19th November 2024 including the TUPE of 32 staff from NCA to Oldham Council and the authorising of any resulting redundancies.

16 CATERING REVIEW IMPLEMENTATION

The Cabinet considered confidential recommendations to the report detailed at agenda item 11.

Resolved:

1. That the Cabinet approve the transition of the school catering provision from Oldham Education Catering



Service to schools through a comprehensive and supportive change management process.

2. That the Cabinet approve the withdrawal of the OECS from the school meal provider market no later than September 2025.



17 PUBLIC HEALTH INVESTMENT REVIEW

The Cabinet considered confidential recommendations to the report detailed at agenda item 12.

Resolved:

- 1. That the Cabinet notes the work undertaken to date and approves the outlined methodology and proposals for changes to the Public Health investment approach, as outlined in the confidential report.
- 2. That the Cabinet approves the proposed changes in the Public Health investments to council services, as outlined in the confidential report.

The meeting started at 6.00pm and ended at 6.25pm

This page is intentionally left blank